
300 E. Locust Street, Ste. 100 
Des Moines, Iowa 50309 

515-244-0021

MEMORANDUM 

DATE:   November 17, 2021 

TO:     MWA Board Members 

CC:       MWA Staff  

FROM:  Michael McCoy, Executive Director 

RE:    Wednesday, Nov. 17, 2021, Board Meeting 
This month’s board meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, Nov. 17, 2021, at 5:45 pm in the 
education center at Metro Recovery Facility (4185 SE Beisser Drive, Grimes, Iowa). If you have 
questions about any items listed below, please call me at 323.6519 (w) or 707.3869 (c). I look 
forward to seeing you on Wednesday. 

The following numbered items correspond with the number of the item on the agenda: 

Consent Agenda Items for Approval  

6. Resolution 11-21-01 - Consideration of June 2021, Financial Statements – Action to
Receive and File

7. Resolution 11-21-02 - Consideration of July 2021, Financial Statements – Action to
Receive and File

8. Resolution 11-21-03 - Consideration of August 2021, Financial Statements – Action to
Receive and File

9. Resolution 11-21-04 - Consideration of October 2021, Monthly Expenditures

Regular Agenda Items for Approval 

10. Resolution 11-21-05 – Approval to Purchase Articulated Dump Truck (ADT) – Action
Item
Three bids were received for the purchase of a 40-ton capacity ADT for Metro Park East
Landfill. The ADT is used to haul cover soil, hydrated coal ash from the solidification pit,
and compost material at MPE. Due to long lead times for new equipment purchases,
staff sought out low hour rental machines for sale, that could be available immediately.

11. Resolution 11-21-06 – Approval to Award bid for Public Improvement at Central Office –
Action Item

1



One bid was received for the installation of a solar panel system at Metro Waste 
Authority’s Central Office. The solar panel system is expected to lower MWA’s electric 
grid consumption by 25% or more. 

2



Board of Directors 
2021 Calendar Year 

Ron Pogge 
Chair 

David Gisch 
Vice-Chair 

Dean O’Connor 
Altoona 

Mark Holm 
Ankeny 

Wes Enos 
Bondurant 

John Edwards 
Clive 

Joe Gatto 
Des Moines 

Steve Allen 
Elkhart 

David Gisch 
Grimes 

Tom Cope 
Johnston 

Bill Roberts 
Mitchellville 

Ed Kuhl 
Norwalk 

Dean Cooper 
Pleasant Hill 

Rob Sarchet 
Polk City 

Tom Hockensmith 
Polk County 

Gerald Lane 
Runnells 

Ron Pogge 
Urbandale 

Steve Gaer 
West Des Moines 

Susan Skeries 
Windsor Heights 

Michael McCoy 
 Executive Director 

Metro Waste Authority 
Board Meeting 

November 17, 2021 

MWA Metro Recycling Facility  
4185 SE Beisser Dr, Grimes, Iowa 50111 

5:45 pm 

Members of the public wishing to attend this meeting in person may do so at 
the MWA Metro Recycling Facility, where seats will be arranged to allow for 

social distancing. Masks will be available and are mandatory for public 
guests. Additional CDC recommendations will be implemented. 

Meeting ID: 847 9250 6487 
Passcode: 708798 

Agenda 

1. Call to Order, Roll Call

2. Approval of Regular Agenda

3. Public Forum

CONSENT AGENDA 
The following are routine items enacted by one roll call vote without separate 
discussion unless someone, Board or Public, requests an item be removed for 
consideration: 

4. Approval of Consent Agenda – Items 4 through 9

5. Consideration of Minutes October 20, 2021, Metro Waste Authority Board Meeting –
Action for Approval

6. Resolution 11-21-01 - Consideration of June 2021, Financial Statements – Action to
Receive and File

7. Resolution 11-21-02 - Consideration of July 2021, Financial Statements – Action to
Receive and File

8. Resolution 11-21-03 - Consideration of August 2021, Financial Statements – Action to
Receive and File

9. Resolution 11-21-04 – Consideration of October 2021, Monthly Expenditures –
Action for Approval

END CONSENT AGENDA 

Regular Agenda Items for Approval – Item 11 

10. Resolution 11-21-05 – Approval to Purchase Articulated Dump Truck (ADT) –
Action Item

11. Resolution 11-21-06 – Approval to Award Bid for Public Improvement at Central
Office – Action Item

12. Director’s Report

13. Chair’s Report

3



 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 
 

MWA Board Meeting 
November 17, 2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
14. General Board Discussion and Other Business 
 
15. Correspondence 

 
16. Adjournment 
 
December Executive/Finance Meeting: December 1, 2021, MWA Central Office, 
300 E. Locust Street, Ste 100, Des Moines, Iowa 50309, 12:00 pm. 
 
December Board Meeting: December 15, 2021, MWA Central Office, 300 E. 
Locust Street, Ste. 100, Des Moines, Iowa 50309, 5:45 pm. 
 

 

4



300 E. Locust Street, Ste. 100 
Des Moines, Iowa 50309 

515-244-0021

October 20, 2021 Unofficial Metro Waste Authority Board Meeting Minutes 

1. Call to Order
The meeting was held at Metro Waste Authority’s Central Office. David Gisch, vice chair,
called the October 20, 2021, Metro Waste Authority Board Meeting to order at 5:45 pm.
A quorum was present.

Roll Call – MWA Board Representatives/Alternates in Attendance
Dean O’Connor, Altoona
Mark Holm, Ankeny
John Edwards, Clive
Joe Gatto, Des Moines
David Gisch, Grimes
Bill Roberts, Mitchellville
Ed Kuhl, Norwalk
Rob Sarchet, Polk City
Susan Skeries, Windsor Heights

2. Approval of Regular Agenda
Dean O’Connor, Altoona, motioned to remove consent agenda items 6 and 7 from the
agenda.

Moved by Altoona, seconded by Clive, to approve the October 20, 2021, board meeting
agenda as amended. Motion carried unanimously by voice vote.

3. Public Forum
Hannah Inman, Great Outdoors Foundation , presented on behalf of Polk County Water
& Land Legacy upcoming 2021 bond projects.
______________________________________________________________________
CONSENT AGENDA
The following are routine items enacted by one roll call vote without separate discussion unless
someone, Board or Public, requests that an item be removed for consideration:

4. Approval of Consent Agenda – Items 4 through 10
Moved by Clive, seconded by Altoona, to approve the Consent Agenda, items 4 through
10. Motion carried unanimously by voice vote.

5. Consideration of Minutes of September 15, 2021, Metro Waste Authority Board
Meeting – Action for Approval

6. Resolution 10-21-01 - Consideration of July 2021, Financial Statement -
Action to Receive and File

7. Resolution 10-21-02 - Consideration of July  2021, Financial Statement -
Action for Approval

5



8. Resolution 10-21-03 – Consideration of September 2021, Monthly Expenditures - Action
for Approval

9. Resolution 10-21-04 - Approval of Ordering Spare Parts for MRF Equipment - Action for
Approval

10. Resolution 10-21-05 - Approval of Change Order for MRF Education Center - Action for
Approval

END CONSENT AGENDA 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

Regular Agenda Items for Approval - Items 11 through 13 

11. Resolution 10-21-06- Approval to Reject Phase I Closed Stormwater Repair Bids at 
Metro Park East Landfill - Action Item
Moved by Clive, seconded by Altoona, to approve Resolution 10-21-06. Motion carried 
unanimously by voice vote.
Michael McCoy, executive director, reported bids received to repair the damaged culverts 
in phase one closed stormwater exceeded the amount expected by staff. Staff 
recommend rejecting all bids, making necessary repairs this fall, and completing the 
repairs with Cell E construction in the spring of 2022.
Clive asked what the engineer originally estimated for the repairs. Austin Broshar, HDR 
Engineers, reported $635,000 and the lowest bid received was $1.9 million dollars.

12. Resolution 10-21-07 - Approval of Contract SloanVasquezMcAfee Municipal Solid Waste 
Advisors - Action Item
Moved by Clive, seconded by Altoona, to approve Resolution 10-21-07. Motion carried 
unanimously by voice vote.
Leslie Irlbeck, deputy director, reported the contract with SloanVasquezMcAfee Municipal 
Solid Waste Advisors will include two scopes of work and contracts. The first scope of 
work will include physically inspecting the equipment, then preforming dry and wet test 
runs on the equipment over the course of 13 to 15 days. The contact cost is
$32,500-37,500.
During Executive Finance, McCoy had asked to move forward with the contract to start 
the testing phase. Tonight, staff is bringing to the board for an official vote.
The second scope of work is for management and training for the first 60 days of 
operation. SloanVasquezMcAfee team will put together an operational playbook, 
designed to the specs for our equipment and what MWA is doing to serve our 
communities. As MWA learns the business of operating a material recovery facility 
(MRF), they will manage the site for as an operational manager. The estimated cost is
$70,000.

13. Public Hearing to Approve Public Improvement at Central Office
McCoy reported since the project is a public improvement at Central Office, for solar 
panels on the roof, it needs to go out for a public bid.
Resolution 10-21-08 - Approval of Public Improvement at Central Office  - Action Item

6



Moved by Clive, seconded by Altoona, to approve Resolution 10-21-08. Motion carried 
unanimously by voice vote.  

14. Director’s Report
McCoy reported one of the two balers for the MRF was placed yesterday, and the
second baler is on its way to Iowa. The equipment manufacturer is on site testing.
Leslie’s team is working very hard to onboard staff. Currently, we have a full-time
mechanic, interim mechanic and six to seven full time sorters starting Friday. Emily
Dobbins, human resource manager, continues to have hiring events and work with
community partners. McCoy reported it is a tough market for hiring, however, we are
getting some great applications.

McCoy reported the City of Des Moines has committed to bring their recycling tonnage
to Metro Recycling Facility, starting November 1st. They will be doing a tour and learning
truck flow.

McCoy reported staff is working through the budget process with Kent Farver, former
MWA Finance Administrator. Staff have been working with Scott Racker and the Drake
University team on the Strategic Plan and are excited to bring to the board for approval
in coming months.

McCoy reported MWA received a grant from the EPA for $140,578 to create virtual
resources and interactive simulations to allow uninterrupted learning. Irlbeck reported
opportunity to take hands-on learning into the classroom. Sarah Borzo, education and
outreach coordinator, has done a wonderful job finding real life field work and places
people can visit. MWA will work on logistics to get the goggles to the classrooms, since
students cannot leave the classroom for field trips.

The November executive finance meeting will be held at Central Office (300 E. Locust
Street, Ste. 100, Des Moines, Iowa) on Wednesday, Nov. 3, 2021, at 12:00 pm.

The November board meeting will be held at Metro Recycling Facility (4185 SE Beisser
Drive, Grimes, Iowa) on Wednesday, Nov. 17, 2021, at 5:45 pm.

15. Chair’s Report
David Gisch, vice chair, reported having many board members on the audit committee,
however, if you are still interested to contact Leslie Irlbeck. Ron Pogge, chair, is sending
information regarding when the audit committee will meet.

The November board meeting will be at Metro Recycling Facility in Grimes at 5:45 pm,
with a ribbon cutting prior to the meeting.

Employee Service Awards are on Friday, Nov. 5 at Metro Recycling Facility in Grimes.
Open house starts at 5:00 pm, dinner at 6:00 pm, followed by a drive-in movie at 7:00
pm. McCoy reported if you have not seen the flyer, staff will send one out. It will be a fun
event.

16. General Board Discussion and Other Business
No report.

17. Adjournment

,

7



8



9



10



Metro Waste Authority Board 
Monthly Board Meeting 

November 17, 2021 
Agenda Item #10 

ITEM:  
Approval to Purchase Articulated Dump Truck (ADT) 

SUMMARY:  
Three bids were received for the purchase of a 40-ton capacity ADT for Metro Park East 
Landfill. The ADT is used to haul cover soil, hydrated coal ash from the solidification pit, and 
compost material at MPE. Due to long lead times for new equipment purchases, staff sought out 
low hour rental machines for sale, that could be available immediately.  

The following bids were received: 
• Zieglar Caterpillar: Caterpillar 740 New 31.9 yd3 capacity $655,000 
• Murphy Tractor: John Deere 2019 460E 1,900 hours 35.1 yd3 capacity  $432,500
• Heavy Housby: Volvo 2020 A40G 1675 hours 32.3 yd3 capacity $457,200 

Murphy Tractor is the recommended vendor with pricing in the amount of $432,500. This 
represents the lowest bid and the highest capacity. The John Deere comes with a powertrain 
warranty for 5,000 hours or until December 2026. The current ADT at MPE is typically used 800 
to 1,000 hours per year. 

DISCUSSION POINTS: 
Staff has inspected and driven the specific John Deere that is recommended for purchase. The 
unit would be available for use at the landfill immediately.      

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval of the purchase of the John Deere 460E from Murphy Tractor. 

BUDGET REQUIREMENTS: 
The ADT is budgeted in the FY 21/22 budget. The budgeted amount is $463,000 and is listed as 
6-wheel truck.

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Ziegler Bid
• Murphy Tractor Bid
• Heavy Housby Bid

CONTACT: 
Jon Penheiter, solid waste administrator, 515.333.4446 

11



Ziegler Inc. 

Page 1 of 2 

188117-01 

September 30, 2021 

METRO WASTE AUTHORITY       
300 E LOCUST ST STE 100 
Des Moines, IA 50309-1864 

Attn: Jon Penheiter 

NEW 2022 CAT 740GC Articulated Truck 

STANDARD EQUIPMENT 

POWERTRAIN – Auto shift transmission with nine -  forward and two reverse speeds – Advanced Automatic Traction Control – 

OPERATOR ENVIRONMENT – Air vents, adjustable – Radio ready – Colour Multi-Purpose Display (CMPD), -   including cycle 
counter, rear view – Air conditioning with R134A refrigerant – 

ELECTRICAL – Hood raise and lower switch. -  stop/tail and width marker -  rear, two reversing/working, two – Lights: cab interior, 
front, side and – Headlights, four – 12 volt convertor – Electrical system: 24 volt, 10A 24 to – 

POWERTRAIN – Waiting brake – Hill assist – Auto retarder control (ARC)/no lever – Machine speed limiter -  wheel brake – Three 
axle, six wheel drive, six – Fluid sampling valves – Oil cooled brakes, enclosed – Engine compression brake -  for all axles -  
clutched cross-axle differential locks – Differentials, standard with auto -  for the region of sale -  for emissions compliance as 
required - -Engine will be certified and labelled – Cat C15 engine with ACERT technology 

OPERATOR ENVIRONMENT -   camera and screen – 

OTHER STANDARD EQUIPMENT – Spill guard, front, integral part of -  fabricated body – Starting receptacle, electric, remote – 
Towing eyes front – Vandalism protection: lockable caps for -  fuel tank and hydraulic oil tank – Fully raised body lock – 

OPERATOR ENVIRONMENT – Electro hydraulic hoist control – Glass windows, laminated and tinted -  front, toughened and tinted 
rear – Heater and defroster with four-speed fan – Horn, electric – Operator and passenger grab handles – ROPS/FOPS cab with full 
instrumentation – Seat, fully adjustable, air suspension – Seat, padded companion/trainer – Seat belts, two retractable – Secondary 
steering – Storage: two cup holders, flask -  receptacle, under seat storage, door -  pocket, behind seat storage, coat hook – Sun 
visor – Tilt and telescopic steering wheel – Front windshield wiper and washer, -  intermittent 

OTHER STANDARD EQUIPMENT – Back up alarm – Body, adapted for exhaust heat – Guards: rear window and radiator, -  
crankcase and axle – Mirrors, left, right and front – Mud flaps, body mounted 

12



Ziegler Inc.  

Page 2 of 2 
 

MACHINE SPECIFICATIONS 
 
740GC 04A ARTICULATED TRUCK 
LANE 3 ORDER 
LUBRICATION, MANUAL 
ROW ENGINE ARRANGEMENT 
AID, COLD WEATHER STARTING 
LIGHTS, ROOF MOUNTED WORK 
NO MACHINE SECURITY SYSTEM 
WIPER, REAR 
AM/FM RADIO (BLUETOOTH READY) 
MIRROR, ELECTRIC HEATED 
SEAT, DELUXE 
SEAT BELT, 4 POINT 
CAB, STANDARD 
PRODUCT LINK, CELLULAR PLE641 
NO PAYLOAD 

 
TANK, STANDARD FUEL 
NO SOUND SUPPRESSION 
FENDER COVER 
CHASSIS, STANDARD 
BODY, STANDARD 
EXHAUST, HEATED BODY 
ANTIFREEZE, -50C (-58F) 
SERIALIZED TECHNICAL MEDIA KIT 
FILM GROUP, ANSI 
GROUP, ETHER 
HEATER, ENGINE COOLANT, 240V 
TAILGATE, SCISSOR 
ROLL ON-ROLL OFF 
TIRES, 29.5R25 MM**MS302 E3/L3 

 
 
 
 
 
SELL PRICE $655,000.00 
  

  
 
 
 
 
 
WARRANTY 

Standard Warranty: Standard Manufacturer’s Warranty  
Extended Warranty:  48 MO/4000 HR POWERTRAIN + HYDRAULICS + TECH  
  

 
F.O.B/TERMS: DES MOINES 
 
 
 
 

** Ziegler Currently has 3 machines on order slated for March 2022 delivery ** 
Inventory subject to change  

 
 

13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



Metro Waste Authority Board 
Monthly Board Meeting 

November 17, 2021 
Agenda Item #11 

ITEM:  
Approval to Award Bid for Public Improvement at Central Office

SUMMARY:  
One bid was received for the installation of a solar panel system at Metro Waste Authority’s 
Central Office. The solar panel system is expected to lower MWA’s electric grid consumption by 
25% or more.  

The following bid was received from EPo Energy, LLC. 

• Installation and Equipment $250,702 
• Operations and Maintenance Plan (5 years) $18,360 
• Total $269,062 

DISCUSSION POINTS: 
Last year’s kWh was averaged at 585,900. The estimated annual production of the solar panel 
system is 171,000 kWh. This equals out to about 29% of our annual energy consumption at 
Central Office. EPo Energy’s timeline for completion is six weeks.  

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  to award the bid for public improvement at Central Office to EPo 
Energy, LLC.  

BUDGET REQUIREMENTS: 
The DNR awarded MWA a grant in the amount of $112,086 for this project. The remaining 
$156,976 is budgeted in FY 21/22 Capital Expenditures.  

ATTACHMENTS: 
• EPo Energy’s proposal

CONTACT: 
Michael McCoy, executive director, 515.323.6519 

39



EPo Energy, LLC 1 

24989 105th Street 
Columbus Junction, Iowa 52738 
PH:  319-541-3709 

November 9, 2021 

Metro Waste Authority 
Mr. Michael McCoy 
Executive Director 
RE: RFP for Installation of Rooftop Solar System 

Mr. McCoy, 

EPo Energy, LLC (EPo) is pleased to provide Metro Waste Authority (MWA) a proposal for the 
Installation of Rooftop Solar System pursuant to the Request for Proposal issued and dated on October 
20, 2021. 

This is an exciting proposal, as we know MWA has long been recognized as a leader in the industry 
from a renewable energy perspective.  EPo is eager to partner with MWA to be a part of this continued 
industry leadership while reducing MWA’s electrical grid consumption, demonstrate greenhouse gas 
reduction and assist in the continued education of MWA’s employees, customers, and associates. 

EPo has submitted a proposal that includes all design documents for all elements of the project, 
including, but not limited to mechanical and electrical.  All equipment, including electrical, meet the 
specifications and applicable codes as indicated in the request for proposal.  EPo’s proposal includes 
subcontracting all electrical work to CommonWealth Electric Company (CommonWealth) of the 
Midwest, located in Des Moines, Iowa. EPo and CommonWealth of Electric Company have visited the 
site location and are extremely familiar with all aspects of the Metro Waste Building located at 300 East 
Locust Street and believe we are best positioned to design a complete system that will maximize both 
system size relative to individual facility demand and cost savings per kWh for MWA. 

The following pricing proposal is submitted to MWA: 

• Turnkey Pricing - $250,702.  This price includes all permitting, equipment, installation,
electrical, interconnection, and monitoring system.  This does not include disposal of rock
that is removed from roof. Please note, the Operations and Maintenance plan is not included
in this turnkey pricing.  Please see below under “Technical Solution” for the Operations and
Maintenance Plan proposed pricing.

• PPA with 6 year Option.  EPo elected not to provide a proposal for this financing option, as
the project size did not meet our financing partners requirements for a PPA.

EPo appreciates the opportunity to bid on this proposal for MWA. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Jason Egli 
EPo Energy, LLC 
President/Owner 
24989 105th Street 
Columbus Junction, Iowa 52738 
Email: jegli@epoenergy.com 
Cell: 319-541-3709 

40



 
 

EPo Energy, LLC  2 
 
 

24989 105th Street 
Columbus Junction, Iowa 52738 
PH:  319-541-3709 

 

 
 

Executive Summary 
 

EPo Energy, LLC (EPo) is pleased to provide a proposal to Metro Waste Authority (MWA).  EPo 
is familiar with the MWA site, as we previously proposed to MWA to install a solar energy 
system over the past few years.  EPo has toured the facility and our Electrical subcontractor, 
CommonWealth Electric, has performed services for MWA at this current location and is an 
approved vendor of MWA.  This background and knowledge have allowed EPo to propose a 
transaction that will exceed MWA’s central office grid consumption goals as well as contribute 
to meeting the Iowa DNR’s Environmental Management System’s goal of greenhouse gas 
emissions. 
 
This proposal is a turnkey solution for MWA.  Jason Egli, owner and project manager, and the 
installation team have experience in managing and installing over 10 MW of solar energy in 
three hundred (300) plus locations.   A good number of these installations were with Mid 
America Energy.  In addition, EPo has experience working with the City of Des Moines on 
project such as CY Concepts and Bascom Trucking.   This experience and CommonWealth’s 
regular workload within the city limits of Des Moines, including a 20 kW install at the Dart 
terminal in Des Moines positions EPo as the vendor of choice for the solar rooftop installation 
at MWA. 
 
EPo’s timeline for this project is estimated to be six (6) weeks with the start of permitting.   
Please see the “Proposed Schedule” section of the proposal for a breakdown of the timeline. 
 
 

Technical Solution  
 

EPo Energy has utilized Helioscope for all design facets since inception of the company.  The 
consistency and accuracy of EPo Energy’s utilization of Helioscope is solidified by an article that 
the Des Moines Register published regarding school systems that had installed solar energy 
systems in Iowa.  Not only was EPo one of the first solar companies to install a solar system for 
a school system in Iowa, but our installations demonstrated high performance in comparison to 
other installations.  
 
EPo has historical experience working with solar options at other MWA sites and provided 
technical expertise in support of the grant application secured by MWA for solar installation.  In 
addition, EPo assisted MWA with applying and securing the interconnection agreement with 
Mid America Energy.  This experience and the experience of our electrical subcontractor, 
CommonWealth, allowed EPo to propose a solar energy system that maximizes both system 
size relative to the facility demand and cost savings for MWA. 
 
EPo utilized past electricity bills to configure an optimal solar energy solution within the 
helioscope software.  Factors considered when calculating maximum annual production can be 
found on the attached Helioscope summary in Exhibit I.  The following summarizes 

41



 
 

EPo Energy, LLC  3 
 
 

24989 105th Street 
Columbus Junction, Iowa 52738 
PH:  319-541-3709 

performance characteristics of the system: 
 

• Guaranteed kW-DC is 122.4 kW. 
• Guaranteed kW-AC is 100 kW. 
• Estimated annual production is 171,700 kWh. 
• Panels- SIL-400 NU (Silfab Solar Inc.).  Specification’s sheet is attached at 

Exhibit II. 
 

• Inverter SE100K (Solar Edge).  Specification’s sheet is attached at Exhibit III. 
• Electrical design.  See Electrical Drawings and Line Specifications at Exhibit 

IV. 
• Optimizers P860 (Solar Edge).  Specification’s sheet is attached at Exhibit V. 
• IronRidge Racking. Specification’s sheet is attached in Exhibit VI. 

 
Warranties on the equipment and workmanship are as follows: 
 

• Panels.  The Silfab panels are warrantied for twenty-five (25) Year 
Manufacturing Warrant and a thirty (30) year Production Warranty. 

• Inverters. The Solar Edge Inverters are warrantied for twelve (12) years.  A 
twenty-five (25) year extended warranty can be purchased. 

• Ballasts.  Iron-Ridge provides a twenty-five (25) year warranty on all ballasts. 
• Workmanship.  EPo provides a one-year workmanship warranty. 
• All other equipment warranties are direct pass through from the respective 

vendors. 
 
Layout.  See attached diagram (Exhibit VII) providing the proposed layout of the PV arrays.  
Please note this proposed layout takes into consideration the City Code for all setbacks and 
access to all equipment.  The Helioscope report provides the proposed estimated annual 
production of the system at 171,700 kWh.  Please see the Helioscope report for estimated 
monthly production.  In addition, please see Exhibit VII for a one-line drawing completed by 
CommonWealth that provides the physical layout of the inverters and conduit. 
 
Solar Edge Monitoring System.  We will utilize Solar Edge’s web-based monitoring system.  We 
will work with MWA’s web designer to place this on their website and connect a Kiosk at 
MWA’s preferred location within their facility (Note:  Internet connectivity will be provided by 
MWA). 
 
Operations and Maintenance Plan (O&M Plan).  EPo will provide an annual O&M Plan for 
$3,672 annually for five (5) years ($18,360 total).  This O&M plan includes weekly on-line 
monitoring, quarterly site visits, and coverage for all labor and travel expenses.  Equipment 
replacement not covered under warranty will be billed to MWA directly. 

 
 
 
 
 

42



 
 

EPo Energy, LLC  4 
 
 

24989 105th Street 
Columbus Junction, Iowa 52738 
PH:  319-541-3709 

Proposer Profile 
 

At EPo Energy, A Customer Focused Company 
 
EPo Energy is an Iowa based renewable energy company offering a complete line of 
affordable and reliable solar energy systems.   EPo was founded in 2013 with a 
strong focus on the agricultural market.  Whether you are a producer, processor, 
grower, dairy, or ranch, we can provide you energy savings and a predictability to  

 

maximize your ROI.  We are experts in dealing with the energy requirements of 
agricultural businesses (202 projects). EPo has installed over 305 projects (10 MW – 
50,545 panels) since 2013. 

EPo has expanded their agricultural experience to customers ranging from 
residential, commercial, and not for profit sectors in Iowa, Illinois, Minnesota, 
Nebraska, and Arkansas. With the success EPo had in the agriculture sector, 
expansion in to the commercial and residential areas progressed quickly.  We have 
the expertise to design, install and support all your energy system needs to assist in 
the advancement of a clean energy distributed base throughout the Midwest, 
thereby reducing our dependence on both foreign and domestic fossil fuels, while 
enabling the agricultural, commercial, residential sectors in the Midwest 
communities to work toward developing their own form of energy independence. As 
we continue to grow, the EPo brand is fast becoming one of the most recognizable 
renewable energy options for agriculture and all other sectors in the Midwest. We 
set out to be the best in providing turn-key energy solutions, and we believe we are 
doing just that. It is our goal to create energy independence for Midwest 
communities that future generations can embrace. 

At EPo Energy, we have the collective commercial and residential 
equipment installation experience ensuring professional quality workmanship at 
your site. Our premium line of products provides best-in-class performance and 
allows us the flexibility to offer customized renewable resources that best fulfill 
your current requirements while keeping options open for future expansion.  
However, one solar solution does not fit all customers.  We have the expertise to 
customize a solar energy solution to maximize the ROI for all customers.  At EPo Energy 
we partner with you from the first introductory conversation through project 
commissioning, to manage the process through completion. In addition, both EPo 
and our subcontractor CommonWealth have significant experience working Polk 
County and with the City of Des Moines which will drive time and cost saving 

43



 
 

EPo Energy, LLC  5 
 
 

24989 105th Street 
Columbus Junction, Iowa 52738 
PH:  319-541-3709 

efficiencies for the MWA rooftop solar system installation investment.   We stay 
involved from start to finish. 

EPo has worked with the City of Des Moines on not-for-profit, commercial and 
residential projects.   In addition, CommonWealth works on a regular basis with the 
City of Des Moines for projects in all business sectors.  EPo is NABCEP certified (PV 
Certificate #092411-88).  The North American Board of Certified Energy 
Practitioners (NABCEP) is the gold standard for Solar PV sales and installation for 
North America. NABCEP is committed to providing a certification program of quality 
and integrity for the professionals and consumer/public it is designed to serve. 
Professionals who choose to become certified demonstrate their competence in  

 

the field and their commitment to upholding high standards of ethical and 
professional practice. NABCEP’s goal is to develop voluntary national certification 
programs that will promote renewable energy, provide value to solar installation 
and sales professionals, promote worker safety and skill, and promote consumer 
confidence. NABCEP holds all certified professionals to the highest standards.  
CommonWealth licensing includes holding state licenses in Iowa and twenty plus 
other states.  At EPo and CommonWealth safety is held in the highest regard and 
priority.  Our teams are never on site without being properly equipped and 
practicing the highest safety standards.  In addition, we go above and beyond when 
it comes to the initial and continued assessment of projection locations to ensure 
that safety is adhered to and adjusted for each location.  EPo is proud to state that 
we have not had a reportable incident since inception of the entity in 2013.  
CommonWealth is proud to have been awarded for the seventh consecutive year, 
an award for their training and educational efforts in safety through their insurance 
carrier.  CommonWealth’s accident rates are far below the national average for 
electrical contractors.  Part of CommonWealth’s electrical training efforts include 
70E Arc flash electrician training, in accordance with NFPA 70E OSHA regulations. 

EPo Insurance: 

General Liability.  Auto-Owners. Policy # 50-042-691-000.  Broker:  Jared Vincent, 
The Insurance Station, Altoona, IA. (515-975-9747). 

Workers Compensation.  Broker:  Jared Vincent, The Insurance Station, Altoona, IA. 
(515-975-9747). 

 

CommonWealth Insurance: Currently an approved vendor of MWA. 

 

 

44



 
 

EPo Energy, LLC  6 
 
 

24989 105th Street 
Columbus Junction, Iowa 52738 
PH:  319-541-3709 

Project Experience 
 

Below is a list of projects completed by EPo over the last three years similar in size 
and scope.   These jobs represent roof top and ground mounts.  The permitting on 
these jobs includes working with MidAmerican Energy (Bascom Trucking and CY 
Concepts), Alliant and a few rural electrical cooperatives.   Finally, the installs at 
WACO school district and CY Concepts involved providing monitoring systems for 
educational purposes. 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Project 
 Location Relevant Project 

Information 

Waco CSD High School Waco, IA • 402.6 kW PV Solar 
• Ground Mount 

Jet Gas- Mt. Pleasant St Burlington, IA • 111.63 kW PV Solar- 
Roof Mount 

MIPA Farms Columbus Junction, IA • 374 kW PV Solar – 
Ground Mount 

Tim Graber Farms Wayland, Washington & 
Wapello, IA 

• 263 kW PV Solar – 
Roof Mount 

Morning Sun CSD Burlington, IA • 102.3 kW PV Solar – 
Ground Mount 

Toyota of Iowa City 
(ABRA Auto Body) 

Iowa City, Iowa • 109 kW PV Solar- 
• Roof Top 

Crooked Creek Camp Washington, Iowa • 26.1 kW 
• Roof and Ground  

CY Concepts Des Moines, Iowa • 16.47 kW 

Bascom Trucking Des Moines, Iowa • 112.75 kW 

45



 
 

EPo Energy, LLC  7 
 
 

24989 105th Street 
Columbus Junction, Iowa 52738 
PH:  319-541-3709 

References 
 

Tim Graber 
Graber Farms/WACO School Board President 

319.461.2002 
timgraberfarms@gmail.com 

-- 
 

Bob Walker 
Walker Homestead 

bob@walker-homestead.com 
319.333.4524 

 
Rich Krogmann 

Farmer/Northwest Mechanical 
rkrogmann@northwestmech.com 

563.529.9236 
 

 

 
 

Litigation 
 

Neither EPo, CommonWeatlh, any team member, or corporate officers have been party to any lawsuit 
involving the performance of any equipment it has installed 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

46



EPo Energy, LLC 8 

24989 105th Street 
Columbus Junction, Iowa 52738 
PH:  319-541-3709 

Project Team 

Jason Egli – Owner and Project Manager 

SUMMARY 

Entrepreneur and Executive Officer with experience in operations management, business development, project 
management, project financing, people management and development, and process safety and environmental 
management in the Chemical and Biotech Industries. Excellent experience in coming into new facilities and 
optimizing processes to increase productivity and reduce costs with low capital costs. Managed facilities that were 
regulated by OSHA, EPA, DNR, FDA and cGMP guidelines with successful record of compliance. Excellent 
negotiation and business development skills. 

PROFESSIONAL   EXPERIENCE 
EPo Energy, Cedar Falls, IA 2013- Present 
President, Owner (2013-Present) 
Solar Energy Company with emphasis on supplying, installing and designing solar systems for the Agricultural 
markets. 

o Started business in spring of 2013. Sold $2.5 M of sales in 2013 and $6.4 M YTD in 2014 of solar systems 
into the Agricultural/Commercial market in Iowa. 

o Worked with Gexpro/Rexel to develop and design systems that are US Based systems for this market
at a cost that gives customers < 5 year ROI.

o Developed model with Gexpro/Rexel to target the Agricultural industry for Solar PV.
o Completed over 300 Energy Audits 2013 and 2014 for potential customers to determine size of

Energy System to generate, evaluate economics of energy replacement/energy efficiency projects.
o Wrote and was successfully awarded 18 of 20 USDA REAP Grants for customers projects.
o Developed strategic relationships with subcontractors to reduce overhead and set the market for cost

in Solar Industry in Iowa.

CVP Advisors, Cedar Falls, 2010- Present 
Managing Director, Owner (2010-Present) 
Consulting service that focuses on local businesses to help with Financial and Strategic Business Planning, 
International Expansion, Process Flow and Project Management, Mergers and Acquisitions, and Technical 
Expertise. 

o Worked with small ethanol plant to implement safety, environmental and operational  systems.
o Reviewed technologies that could be implemented into existing ethanol facilities to reduce energy

usage and add higher value products, including biochemicals and organic acids.

R&E Advisors, LLC, Johnson City, TN 2010-Present 
Executive Vice President, Owner (2010-2013) 

o Business and technical advisors to Eastman Chemical Company, Kingsport, Tennessee.
o Technical and Business structure advisor for startup Algae company. Worked with founder and CEO to

structure business, engineer best process for harvesting and extracting oil from algae, identified European
Food R&D company, and acted as lead contact with to develop process for producing a 90% protein meal
from algae biomass.

Sound Energy Systems, Eldon, IA 2009- 2012 
Owner (2009- 2013) 
Identified technology for an Energy Harvesting device. Work with professors that developed this device that 
utilizes the Faraday Principle to develop initial R&D prototype into a commercial saleable product. 

o Secured exclusive license for Energy Harvesting device
o Work with local University on developing low cost ABS product
o Secured $250 K in equity

47



 
 

EPo Energy, LLC  9 
 
 

24989 105th Street 
Columbus Junction, Iowa 52738 
PH:  319-541-3709 

o Sold IP to partners in 2012 
Unity Biofuels, Olds, IA 2008-2012 
Owner (2008-2012) 
Identified and lead effort to build two ethanol blending fueling stations. Worked with contractor to procure first 
blending fuel pumps in state of Iowa. In 2009 constructed a Convenience store at Mt. Pleasant, IA location. 
Worked with other owners to procure $1.6 M in financing. 

• Developed design and layout for fueling stations and Convenience store 
• Worked with local Governments to obtain permits and zoning for construction 
• Procured licensing agreement with Quiznos for Mt. Pleasant Location 

GreenWay Communications, Belmond, IA 2009- 2011 
Vice President, Owner (2009-2011) 
Responsible for starting up a 4 G High speed wireless and voice communication company. Utilizing the licensed 
frequency in the 3.65-3.70 gHz frequency, successfully installed wireless network ring in small communities in 
North Central Iowa. Worked with Chief Technology Officer to procure and install equipment. 

• Successfully applied for and received Competitive Local Exchange Carrier (CLEC) in state of Iowa 
• Hired Chief Executive Officer and staff to lead company 
• Raised $1 M in equity 
• Negotiated contracts with Onvoy to handle Class 4 interconnection for Voice Services 

 
Unity Ethanol, Fairfield, IA 2007-2010 
Chief Operating Officer (2007-2010) 
Responsible for startup Energy company business development and strategy plan to construct two- 55 million  
gallon ethanol facilities. Work for Board of Directors to develop Business Plan, work with local community 
organizers to identify infrastructure needs and skills development for local workers, develop and design facility and 
help financing strategy for startup Energy company in Southeast Iowa. 

• Identified technologies that will help improve throughput and reduce energy usage in Fermentation 
process in the biofuels industry. 

• Identified alternative process to alternative feedstocks to produce ethanol and other biochemicals. 
• Developed and modified Business plan with Project Development Consultants. Presented this to local 

investors during equity fund raising. Successfully raised $3 million in equity. 
• Worked with state and local governments to rezone properties, finalize taxation plan, road development 

infrastructure, and utility needs. 
 

PURAC AMERICA, Blair, NE 2004-2007 
Operations Manager (2004-2007) 
Oversaw Fermentation, Biomass Separation, Chemical Reaction, Ion Exchange units, Evaporators, Distillation 
Columns, Base Reactors, Packaging and Warehouse for a Biotech facility. Implement Best Practices from previous 
companies and positions in this new process. Supervised 50 technicians and engineers. 

• Developed and lead training for Acid production to teach Thai Supervisors for new plant that is being 
built in Thailand. 

• Worked with technicians to optimize process to improve yield and plant productivity. For 2005, increased 
plant productivity by 5% over design capacity. Improved average yield by 1.5% for 2005, saving the 
business $600,000. 

• Implemented and optimized new fermentation process to increase production of Lactic Acid by 5% per 
fermentation cycle. 

• Developed and lead recruiting efforts for Purac America. This included making contact with Universities, 
developing job descriptions and hiring criteria, interviewing candidates and leading selection process. 

 
 

MONSANTO CORPORATION, Muscatine, IA 1998-2003 
Production Manager (2001-2003) 
Oversaw manufacturing operations and address personnel issues within the Multi-Purpose and Waste Treatment 
areas at the Muscatine Plant. Provide technical leadership for batch and continuous processes and personal 
development for 45 salary staff and wage employees. Manage a combined budget of more than $20 million. 

48



 
 

EPo Energy, LLC  10 
 
 

24989 105th Street 
Columbus Junction, Iowa 52738 
PH:  319-541-3709 

Oversee quality concerns, maintenance activities, and coordinate production efforts. Implement procedures to 
ensure safety for all employees and the community. 

• Manage quality efforts to reduce the potential for formulation issues occurring in the area and work with 
the Quality Assurance Department to effectively coordinate programs and initiatives. 

• Play a pivotal role in production coordination, acting as the liaison between the production area and St. 
Louis planners. 

• Review and approve all maintenance and capital projects, standard operating procedures (SOP’s) and 
training guidelines for the Multi-Purpose and Waste Treatment areas. 

• Implemented programs to update area process management files and standard operating procedures 
(SOP’s) to ensure compliance with OSHA standards. 

• Initiated and implemented a project totaling an estimated $650,000 per year in raw material and waste 
savings, using Six Sigma Methodology. 

 
 

Process/Controls Engineer (1998-2001) 
Responsible for production, troubleshooting and optimization of process that produces chemical intermediate used 
in the manufacture of herbicides. Process involves cracking, reacting, and separation of materials. 

• Saved over $500,000 in raw material costs due to improved process management and project 
implementation over a two year period. 

• Developed, tested and validated DCS code to manufacture a pharmaceutical raw material according to 
Good Manufacturing Practice (cGMP) guidelines. Successfully scaled up and validated this process. 

• Developed a Statistical Process Control (SPC) program to track key raw materials to help technicians 
identify the occurrence of process upsets and provide direction on how to handle the upsets. 

 
JOHN DEERE HARVESTER WORKS, East Moline, IL 1996-1998 
Process Engineer/Supervisor 
Supervised 12 union employees in a Lean manufacturing environment. Troubleshot Allen Bradley PLC3 
equipment problems daily. 

• Implemented preventive maintenance (PM) and quality control programs that improved equipment 
reliability and paint appearance. 

• Developed and managed pilot plant to test pretreatment chemicals for new paint system. 
Successfully performed DOEs to determine conditions and chemicals to use in new system. 

• Developed manual for E-Coat Paint Department to complete ISO 9001 registration requirements. 
 

DEERE & COMPANY TECHNICAL CENTER, Moline, IL 1995-1996 
Engineer 
Evaluated paint and pretreatment materials for possible use at Deere facilities. 

• Developed and performed Design of Experiment (DOE) tests to test multiple features simultaneously. 
• Interacted with multiple suppliers and consulted for 9 Deere facilities to determine best product fit. 
• Served as Co-Chair for 1996 Deere & Company Paint Conference with more than 150 attendees. 

 
 
 
 

49



 

EPo Energy, LLC  11 
 
 

24989 105th Street 
Columbus Junction, Iowa 52738 
PH:  319-541-3709 

 

 
JOHN C. BRANDT 
510 NE Stoneridge Dr 

Ankeny, IA  50021 
 515-451-4020/brandtjohnc@gmail.com 

 
 
 
 

Professional Experience 
 

CO-FOUNDER/CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER     2012-Present 
EPo Energy, L.L.C. 
Worked with partners in the strategic development of a turnkey renewable energy company focused on solar and 
energy efficiency.  In the third year of operations was named a top 250 solar company in the United States. 
• Managed all accounting and tax aspects including nine (9) joint ventures in solar projects. 
• Became a recognized leader in Iowa regarding the ITC and solar tax credit. 
• Active member of lobbying efforts for the extension and funding of the Iowa solar tax credit. 
• Created philanthropic efforts to bring cost savings and education to not-for-profits in Iowa, successfully 
completing for Community Youth Concepts in Des Moines and others in S.E. Iowa. 
 
 
 
CO-FOUNDER/PRESIDENT/CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER           2012-2019 
Omega Concrete Mixers 
Turned entrepreneurial vision into reality by securing an OEM fabricator, development of the supply chain and an 
international dealer network.  Defined and managed all core business competencies including accounting, 
operations, sales and human resource aspects. Spearheaded a capital raise of $850K. 
• Grew year over year annual sales to $3.5M. 
• Led the strategic development of the only modular mixer in the industry, reducing manufacturing costs in 
excess of 15%. 
• Developed and executed a manufacturing agreement with a top manufacturing company in India.  
 

 
PRESIDENT          2010-2012 
Keuka Energy, L.L.C. 
Approached to assist a successful entrepreneur, in conjunction with the Florida State University Advanced Power 
Systems, to commercialize an innovative small wind turbine. Defined and implemented all core business functions 
from manufacturing through sales. 
• Outsourced Manufacturing to first in class manufacturer in Iowa. 
• Secured a $18B worldwide distributor for the turbine. 

 

50



 

EPo Energy, LLC  12 
 
 

24989 105th Street 
Columbus Junction, Iowa 52738 
PH:  319-541-3709 

 

CONSULTANT/PRESIDENT       2006-2010 
Global Mixers, LLC/International Mobile Mixers 
Hired as a consultant to assist Global Mixers with a turnaround strategy during a challenging recessionary period 
and an entity riddled with debt. 
• Successfully developed an industry leading international dealer network, quickly grossing sales in excess of 
$1.5M. 
• Eliminated $2.8M in recourse debt. 
• Directed a successful sale with compatible industry competitor. 
 
INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER      Jan-Apr 2008  
Hospice of Central Iowa, West Des Moines, Iowa 
Implemented KPI’s and a strategic pathway to eliminate underperforming brick and mortar. 
 
CO-FOUNDER/CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER           2004-2018 
Glycon Technologies, LLC, Ames, Iowa 
Responsible for capital raise and reporting to shareholders.  Directed all operational aspects, including 
implementation of phase gate models for all intellectual property development. 
• Executed the sale of IP developed by Glycon Technologies, LLC. 
• Successfully completed a grant application for $120K through the Iowa State Research Park 
 
V.P., REGIONAL DIRECTOR OF OPERATIONS  1995-2004 
Concentra Medical Centers 
Responsible for all financial, operational, and human resource functions for 28 clinics in Iowa, Illinois, Missouri, 
Kansas, Nebraska, North Dakota, South Dakota and Minnesota.  More than 500,000 visits annually and budget 
exceeding $125 million. 
• Exceeded regional budget every year and top performing operating margin 6 out of 8 years within the 
company. 
• The only regional director to manage multiple divisions, including managed care and bill review services for 
multiple states. 
• Oversaw operations for on-site and consulting services, including a national drug screen TPA. 
• Responsible for direct supervision of 24 managers and 325 employees, including physicians, physical 
therapists, operations, and sales. 
• Involved in all aspect of new market development 
• Coordinated first hospital joint venture for Concentra with the CEO.  Managed three hospital joint ventures 
with diverse teams. 
• Worked with regional management team to implement a national training program. 
 
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER   
Good Shepherd Health Center, Mason City, Iowa 
Financial responsibility for 400 plus bed nursing care facility, pharmacy and 1,000 plus low-income apartments. 
Budget preparation for a 100-bed addition. 
 
 

51



 

EPo Energy, LLC  13 
 
 

24989 105th Street 
Columbus Junction, Iowa 52738 
PH:  319-541-3709 

 

TAX MANAGER   
KPMG Peat Marwick, Des Moines, Iowa 

 
 

 
 
 

EDUCATION & CREDENTIALS 
 

Master of Taxation, Drake University 
Bachelor of Arts, Finance and Insurance, University of Iowa 
Certified Public Accountant (Not Current) 

 
 
 

 
 Safety 

 

At EPo and CommonWealth safety is held in the highest regard and priority.  Our teams are never on site without 
being properly equipped and practicing the highest safety standards.  In addition, we go above and beyond when 
it comes to the initial and continued assessment of projection locations to ensure that safety is adhered to and 
adjusted for each location.  EPo is proud to state that we have not had a reportable incident since inception of the 
entity in 2013.  CommonWealth is proud to have been awarded for the seventh consecutive year, an award for 
their training and educational efforts in safety through their insurance carrier.  CommonWealth’s accident rates 
are far below the national average for electrical contractors.  Part of CommonWealth’s electrical training efforts 
include 70E Arc flash electrician training, in accordance with NFPA 70E OSHA regulations. 

OSHA reporting indicators are utilized monthly, if needed in our safety meetings.  These are utilized for 
recommended practices, implementation guides, transforming performance, and other measures to elevate our 
performance.  EPo will review the site prior to any prepping of the MWA site, as well as review the site daily during 
installation. 

  
 

 
 
 
 

52



 

EPo Energy, LLC  14 
 
 

24989 105th Street 
Columbus Junction, Iowa 52738 
PH:  319-541-3709 

 

 
Proposed Schedule 

 
EPo would propose the following timeline upon successfully being awarded the MWA proposal and an Executed Agreement 
for Design, Installation, and Commissioning of Solar/Photovoltaic System: 
 

• 1 Week – Permitting 
• 3 Weeks – Securitization and Delivery of All Equipment 
• 1 Week – Site Preparation 
• 1 Week – Installation 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

53



 

EPo Energy, LLC  15 
 
 

24989 105th Street 
Columbus Junction, Iowa 52738 
PH:  319-541-3709 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit 1 – Helioscope 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

54



Annual	Production	Report	produced	by	Jason	Egli

©	2021	Folsom	Labs 1/3 November	09,	2021

kW
h

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
0

10k

20k

30k
Shading:	0.9%Shading:	0.9%

Reflection:	3.5%Reflection:	3.5%

Soiling:	2.0%Soiling:	2.0%

Irradiance:	0.7%Irradiance:	0.7%Temperature:	1.4%Temperature:	1.4%

Mismatch:	0.0%Mismatch:	0.0%

Optimizers:	1.4%Optimizers:	1.4%

Wiring:	0.1%Wiring:	0.1%

Clipping:	0.3%Clipping:	0.3%

Inverters:	3.0%Inverters:	3.0%

AC	System:	0.5%AC	System:	0.5%

55



Annual	Production	Report	produced	by	Jason	Egli

©	2021	Folsom	Labs 2/3 November	09,	2021

56



Annual	Production	Report	produced	by	Jason	Egli

©	2021	Folsom	Labs 3/3 November	09,	2021

57



EPo Energy, LLC 16 

24989 105th Street 
Columbus Junction, Iowa 52738 
PH:  319-541-3709 

Exhibit 2 – SilFab (Panels) 

58



INDUSTRY LEADING WARRANTY
All our products include an industry 
leading 25-year product workmanship 
and 30-year performance warranty.

35+ YEARS OF SOLAR INNOVATION
Leveraging over 35+ years of worldwide 
experience in the solar industry, Silfab 
is dedicated to superior manufacturing 
processes and innovations such as 
Bifacial and Back Contact technologies, 
to ensure our partners have the latest in 
solar innovation.

QUALITY MATTERS
Utilizing premium quality materials and 
strict quality control management, Silfab is 
the industry leader in delivering the highest 
efficiency, premium quality PV modules.

SIL-400 NU
JUST
-IN-
TIME TOP

PERFORMER

  MAXIMUM POWER  
Silfab’s high-efficiency modules are optimized for
commercial projects where maximum power density is
preferred.

  LIGHT AND DURABLE  
Engineered to accommodate high front-side load conditions 
for test loads validated up to 5400Pa. The light-weight 
frame is exclusively designed for wide-ranging racking 
compatibility and durability.

  DOMESTIC SUPPORT/SERVICES
Our 500+ North American team is ready to help our partners 
win the hearts and minds of customers, providing customer 
service and product delivery that is direct, efficient and local.   

  SLEEK DESIGN
Sleek design in silver frame with white backsheet.

  PID RESISTANT
PID Resistant due to advanced cell technology and material 
selection. In accordance to IEC 62804-1.

* Chubb provides error and omission insurance to Silfab Solar Inc.

PREMIUM
MONO-PERC
PV  MODULE

59



Si
lfa

b-
SI

L-
40

0-
N

U
-2

02
10

20
4 

• N
o 

re
pr

od
uc

tio
n 

of
 a

ny
 k

in
d 

is
 a

llo
w

ed
. D

at
a 

an
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

is
 s

ub
je

ct
 to

 m
od

ifi
ca

tio
ns

 w
ith

ou
t n

ot
ic

e.
 ©

Si
lfa

b,
 2

02
0.

Silfab Solar Inc.
240 Courtneypark Drive East
Mississauga  ON  L5T 2Y3  Canada
Tel +1 905-255-2501 | Fax +1 905-696-0267
info@silfabsolar.com | www.silfabsolar.com

Silfab Solar Inc.
800 Cornwall Ave
Bellingham  WA  98225  USA
Tel +1 360-569-4733

Electrical Specifications SIL-400 NU mono PERC
Test Conditions STC NOCT
Module Power (Pmax) Wp 400 291.3
Maximum power voltage (Vpmax) V 40.0 36.6
Maximum power current (Ipmax) A 10.1 8.0
Open circuit voltage (Voc) V 48.7 44.8
Short circuit current (Isc) A 10.5 8.3
Module efficiency % 19.6 17.9
Maximum system voltage (VDC) V 1500
Max series fuse rating A 20
Power Tolerance Wp 0 to +10
Measurement conditions: STC 1000 W/m2 • AM 1.5 • Temperature 25 °C • NOCT 800 W/m² • AM 1.5 • Measurement uncertainty ≤ 3%
• Sun simulator calibration reference modules from Fraunhofer Institute. Electrical characteristics may vary by ±5% and power by 0 to +10W.

Temperature Ratings SIL-400 NU mono PERC
Temperature Coefficient Isc 0.03 %/°C
Temperature Coefficient Voc -0.3 %/°C
Temperature Coefficient Pmax -0.38 %/°C
NOCT (± 2°C) 44 °C
Operating temperature -40/+85 °C
Mechanical Properties and Components SIL-400 NU mono PERC

Metric Imperial
Module weight 22 kg ±0.3 kg 48.5 ±0.6 lbs
Dimensions (H x L x D) 2026 mm x 1006 mm x 38 mm 79.8 in x 39.6 in x 1.5 in
Maximum surface load (wind/snow)* 2400 Pa rear load / 5400 Pa front load N/m2 50.13/112.8 lb/ft^2

Hail impact resistance ø 25 mm at 83 km/h  ø 1 in at 51.6 mph

Cells 72 - Si mono PERC - 5 busbar 
158.75 x 158.75 mm

72 - Si mono PERC - 5 busbar 
6.25 x 6.25 Inch

Glass 3.2 mm high transmittance, tempered, DSM 
anti-reflective coating 

0.126 in high transmittance, tempered, DSM 
anti-reflective coating

Cables and connectors (refer to installation manual) 1200 mm, ø 5.7 mm, MC4 from Staubli  47.2 in, ø 0.22 in (12AWG), MC4 from Staubli  

Backsheet Highly reflective white backsheet, high durability, superior hydrolysis resistance,
multi-layer dielectric film

Frame Anodized Aluminum (Silver)
Bypass diodes 3 diodes-30SQ045T (45V max DC blocking voltage, 30A max forward rectified current)
Junction Box UL 3730 Certified, IEC 62790 Certified, IP67 rated

Certifications SIL-400 NU mono PERC

Product
ULC ORD C1703, UL1703, CEC listed, UL 61215-1/-1-1/-2, UL 61730-1/-2, IEC 61215-1/-
1-1/-2***. IEC 61730-1/-2***, CSA C22.2#61730-1/-2, IEC 62716 Ammonia Corrosion; 

IEC61701:2011 Salt Mist Corrosion Certifed, UL Fire Rating: Type 1   

Factory  ISO9001:2015

Warranties SIL-400 NU mono PERC
Module product workmanship warranty 25 years**

Linear power performance guarantee 30 years
≥ 97.1% end 1st year ≥ 91.6% end 12th year ≥ 85.1% end 25th year ≥ 82.6% end 30th year

 * Warning. Read the Safety and Installation Manual for 
mounting specifications and before handling, installing 
and operating modules.
**12 year extendable to 25 years subject to registration 
and conditions outlined under “Warranty” at www.
silfabsolar.com.
***Certification in progress. IEC 61730/61215 

Third-party generated pan files from Fraunhofer-
Institute for Solar Energy Systems ISE are available for 
download at: www.silfabsolar.com/downloads

Option A Horizontal
 Modules Per Pallet: 25
 Pallets Per Truck: 30
 Modules Per Truck: 750

Option B Vertical
 Modules Per Pallet: 27
 Pallets Per Truck: 28
 Modules Per Truck: 756

7.
87

"(
20

0m
m

)
16

.2
6"

(4
13

m
m

)
47

.2
4"

(1
20

0m
m

)

2.
36

"(
60

m
m

)

38.35"(974mm)

47
.2

4"
(1

20
0m

m
)

16
.2

6"
(4

13
m

m
)

39.61"(1006mm)

79
.7

6"
(2

02
6m

m
)

79
.7

6"
(2

02
6m

m
)

1.5"(38mm)

0.
07

"(
1.

8m
m

)

1.02"(26mm)

1.
5"

(3
8m

m
)

0.28"(7mm)

0.
47

"(
12

m
m

) 0.39"(10mm)

C C

Eff vs. Irr Performance SIL-400 NU

Irradiance (W/m2)

M
od

ul
e 

Effi
ci

en
cy

 (%
)

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

21

20

 

70°C

55°C

40°C

25°C

10°C

0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200

Max Eff@ 25°C [680W/m2]
Eff@ 25°C, 1000W/m2

Rel. Eff@ 25°C, 600W/m2

Rel. Eff@ 25°C, 400W/m2

Rel. Eff@ 25°C, 200W/m2

19.75%
19.66%
+0.45%
-0.14%

-2.4%

60



 

EPo Energy, LLC  17 
 
 

24989 105th Street 
Columbus Junction, Iowa 52738 
PH:  319-541-3709 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit 3 – Solar Edge (Inverter) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

61



Three Phase Inverter 
with Synergy Technology 
For the 277/480V Grid for North America 
SE80KUS / SE100KUS / SE120KUS 

12-20
YEAR 

WARRANTY 

Powered by unique pre-commissioning process for rapid system installation 
Pre-commissioning feature for automated validation 
of system components and wiring during the site 
installation process and prior to grid connection 

Easy 2-person installation with lightweight, modular 
design (each inverter consists of 2 or 3 Synergy units 
and one Synergy Manager) 

Independent operation of each Synergy unit enables 
higher uptime and easy serviceability 

Built-in thermal sensors detect faulty wiring 
ensuring enhanced protection and safety 

Built-in arc fault protection and optional rapid shutdown 

Built-in PID mitigation for maximized system 
performance 

Monitored* and field-replaceable surge protection 
devices, to better withstand surges caused by lightning 
or other events 

Built-in module-level monitoring with Ethernet or 
cellular communication for full system visibility 

*Applicable only for DC and AC SPDs

solaredge.com 

IN
VERTERS

62



Three Phase Inverter with Synergy Technology 
For the 277/480V Grid for North America 
SE80KUS / SE100KUS / SE120KUS 

Applicable to inverter with Part Numbers 
SExxK-USx8Ixxxx 

SE80KUS SE100KUS SE120KUS 
OUTPUT
Rated AC Active Output Power 80000 100000 120000 W 
Maximum AC Apparent Output Power 80000 100000 120000 VA 
AC Output Line Connections 3W + PE, 4W + PE 
Supported Grids WYE: TN-C, TN-S, TN-C-S, TT, IT; Delta: IT 
AC Output Voltage Minimum-Nominal-Maximum(1) (L-N) 244 - 277 - 305 Vac 
AC Output Voltage Minimum-Nominal-Maximum(1) (L-L) 422.5 - 480 - 529 Vac 
AC Frequency Min-Nom-Max(1) 59.5 - 60 - 60.5 Hz 
Maximum Continuous Output Current (per Phase, PF=1) 96.5 120 145 Aac 
GFDI Threshold 1 A 
Utility Monitoring, Islanding Protection, Configurable Power Factor, 
Country Configurable Thresholds Yes 

Total Harmonic Distortion ≤ 3 % 
Power Factor Range +/-0.2 to 1 
INPUT
Maximum DC Power (Module STC) Inverter / Synergy Unit 120000 / 60000 150000 / 50000 180000 / 60000 W 
Transformer-less, Ungrounded Yes 
Maximum Input Voltage DC+ to DC- 1000 Vdc 
Operating Voltage Range 850 - 1000 Vdc 
Maximum Input Current 2 x 48.25 3 x 40 3 x 48.25 Adc 
Reverse-Polarity Protection Yes 
Ground-Fault Isolation Detection 167kΩ sensitivity per Synergy Unit(2) 

CEC Weighted Efficiency 98.5 % 
Nighttime Power Consumption < 8 < 12 W 
ADDITIONAL FEATURES 
Supported Communication Interfaces(3) 2 x RS485, Ethernet, Wi-Fi (optional), Cellular (optional) 
Smart Energy Management Export Limitation 
Inverter Commissioning With the SetApp mobile application using built-in Wi-Fi access point for local connection 
Arc Fault Protection Built-in, User Configurable (According to UL1699B) 
Photovoltaic Rapid Shutdown System NEC 2014, 2017 and 2020, Built-in 
PID Rectifier Nighttime, built-in 
RS485 Surge Protection (ports 1+2) Type II, field replaceable, integrated 

AC, DC Surge Protection Type II, field replaceable, integrated 
DC Fuses (Single Pole) 25A, integrated 
DC SAFETY SWITCH
DC Disconnect Built-in 

STANDARD COMPLIANCE
Safety UL1699B, CSA C22.2#107.1, Canadian AFCI according to T.I.L. M-07 
Grid Connection Standards IEEE 1547, Rule 21, Rule 14 (HI) 
Emissions FCC part 15 class A 
(1) For other regional settings please contact SolarEdge support 
(2) Where permitted by local regulations 
(3) For specifications of the optional communication options, visit https://www.solaredge.com/products/communication or the Resource Library 

webpage: https://www.solaredge.com/downloads#, to download the relevant product datasheet 

63



Three Phase Inverter with Synergy Technology 
For the 277/480V Grid for North America 
SE80KUS / SE100KUS / SE120KUS 

Applicable to inverter with Part Numbers 
SExxK-USx8Ixxxx 

SE80KUS SE100K SE120KUS 
INSTALLATION SPECIFICATIONS
Number of Synergy Units per Inverter 2 3 

AC Max Conduit Size 2 ½" in 
Max AWG Line / PE 4/0 / 1/0 
DC Max Conduit Size 1 x 3" ; 2 x 2" in 
DC Input Inverter / Synergy Unit(4) 8 / 4 pairs; 6-12 AWG 12 / 4 pairs; 6-12 AWG 

Dimensions (H x W x D) Synergy Unit: 22 x 12.9 x 10.75 / 558 x 328 x 273 Synergy 
Manager: 14.17 x 22.4 x 11.6 / 360 x 560 x 295 

in / mm 

Weight 
Synergy Unit: 70.4 / 32 

Synergy Manager: 39.6 / 18 lb / kg 

Operating Temperature Range -40 to +140 / -40 to +60(5) ̊F / ˚C 
Cooling Fan (user replaceable) 
Noise < 67 dBA 
Protection Rating NEMA 3R 
Mounting Brackets provided 
(4) DC input is also available with single pair termination per synergy unit. For more information contact SolarEdge
(5) For power de-rating information refer to: https://www.solaredge.com/sites/default/files/se-temperature-derating-note.pdf

© SolarEdge Technologies, Ltd. All rights reserved. SOLAREDGE, the SolarEdge logo, OPTIMIZED BY SOLAREDGE are trademarks or registered trademarks of SolarEdge Technologies, Inc. 
All other trademarks mentioned herein are trademarks of their respective owners. Date: 06/2021 DS-000020-2.1-NA. Subject to change without notice. 

64



 

EPo Energy, LLC  18 
 
 

24989 105th Street 
Columbus Junction, Iowa 52738 
PH:  319-541-3709 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit 4 – Electrical Drawings 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

65



C
o

m
m

o
n

w
e

a
lt

h
E

le
c

tr
ic

 C
o

m
p

a
n

y
o

f 
th

e
 m

id
w

e
st

"C
o

m
m

it
te

d
 t

o
 E

x
c

e
ll

e
n

c
e

"

4
2

2
5

 S
o

u
th

 8
9

th
 S

tr
e

e
t 

 -
O

m
a

h
a

, N
E

 6
8

1
2

7
 -

(4
0

2
) 

3
3

1
-1

4
1

4
 -

w
w

w
.c

o
m

m
o

n
w

e
a

lt
h

e
le

ct
ri

c.
co

m

C
O

L
U

M
B

U
S

 -
D

E
S

 M
O

IN
E

S
 -

L
IN

C
O

L
N

 -
O

M
A

H
A

 -
P

H
O

E
N

IX
 -

T
U

C
S

O
N

S
h

ee
t 

T
it

le

P
ro

je
c

t 
In

fo
rm

a
ti

o
n

Project Number:

1.0CECM  PROJECT DASHBOARD

1.1CECM DRAWING INDEX

Revision:

DRAWN CHECKED APPROVED

Scale is as indicated

when plotted as

Size Arch B 11" x 17"

N
o

.
D

a
te

D
e

s
c

ri
p

ti
o

n

MODULE SPECIFICATION

MODEL

MODULE POWER @ STC

OPEN CIRCUIT VOLTAGE:Voc

MAX POWER VOLTAGE:Vmp

SHORT CIRCUIT VOLTAGE:Isc

MAX POWER CURRENT:Imp

INVERTER SPECIFICATIONS

MODEL

POWER RATING

MAX DC POWER

MAX OUTPUT CURRENT 120A

CEC WEIGHTED EFFICIENCY 98.5%

MAX INPUT CURRENT

MAX DC VOLTAGE

O
N

E 
LI

N
E 

DI
AG

RA
M

M
ET

RO
 W

AS
TE

 P
V 

PR
O

JE
CT

E-601

162002-075 0

150A

SILFAB SIL 400 NU 400W MODULE 
(306 MODULES) WITH 153xP860 OPTIMIZERS
UNIT 01 - INPUT 01: 38 MODULES (19xP860 OPTIMIZERS)
UNIT 01 - INPUT 02: 30 MODULES (15xP860 OPTIMIZERS)
UNIT 01 - INPUT 03: 34 MODULES (17xP860 OPTIMIZERS)
UNIT 02 - INPUT 01: 34 MODULES (17xP860 OPTIMIZERS)
UNIT 02 - INPUT 02: 34 MODULES (17xP860 OPTIMIZERS)
UNIT 02 - INPUT 03: 34 MODULES (17xP860 OPTIMIZERS)
UNIT 03 - INPUT 01: 38 MODULES (19xP860 OPTIMIZERS)
UNIT 03 - INPUT 02: 30 MODULES (15xP860 OPTIMIZERS)
UNIT 03 - INPUT 03: 34 MODULES (17xP860 OPTIMIZERS)

AT STC : Pmax = 400W, Voc = 48.7 V, Isc = 10.5A
OPTIMIZER OUTPUT CURRENT = 18A

UTILITY GRID

800A

DC

AC

~

40A

40A

SOLAREDGE TECHNOLOGIES
SE100KUS  (480/277V, 60Hz, 3PH),
100kW
INVERTER - 01(EXTERIOR)

EXISTING MEC METER

FUSED DISCONNECT
200A 480/277V
NEMA 3R

EXISTING
FEEDS TO
BUILDING
LOADS

40A

4-20
2-40

Copper Feeder Schedule

4-150 4 1/0 6 1.5"

Tag No.
Number of

Phase
Conductors

Size of
Ground
(AWG or
kCMIL)

Minimum
Conduit

Size
Remarks

Tag No.
Number of

Phase
Conductors

Size of
Conductors

(AWG or
kCMIL)

Size of
Ground
(AWG or
kCMIL)

Minimum
Conduit

Size
Remarks

Separately Derived System Schedule

Size of
Conductors

(AWG or
kCMIL)

4-204-150SDS 4-204-150

EXISTING
MDP
800A BREAKER 
SERVICE ENTRANCE RATED
65 AIC

4-
20

4-
80

0S
E

1

1 REPLACE 200A BREAKER WITH 150A BREAKER

FUSED DISCONNECT TO BE LOCATED ON NE
CORNER OF BUILDING IN SIGHT OF MEC METER

PROVIDE NEUTRAL AND GROUND KIT WITH
FUSED DISCONNECT

FUSES IN DISCONNECT SHALL BE 150A CLASS R
TIME DELAY FUSES

4-150SDS 4 1/0 6 1.5"

OPTIMIZER CHARACTERISTICS

MODEL P860

MAX INPUT VOLTAGE 60 VDC

MAX OUTPUT CURRENT 18 ADC

SOLAREDGE TECHNOLOGIES
SE100KUS  (480/277V, 60Hz, 3PH)

100kW

150kW

3 x 40 Adc

1000 Vdc

SJK

SILFAB SIL 400 NU

400W

48.7V

40.0V

10.5A

10.1A

0
06

/3
0/

21
IS

S
U

ED
 F

O
R
 C

O
N

S
TR

U
C
TI

O
N

ELH

EXISTING MEC XFMR

EXISTING SERVICE
ENTRANCE
CONDUCTORS

2

2

3

4

3 4

4-20
2-40

4-20
2-40

2-40 2 8 10 0.75"

EXISTING
GROUNDING ELECTRODE
CONDUCTOR

MASTER
GROUND BAR

2/0AWG BARE
OR INSULATED

6AWG BARE OR
INSULATED

GND

30
0 

E 
Lo

cu
st

 S
t, 

De
s 

M
oi

ne
s,

 IA

122.4 kW DC/100 kW AC Solar System
66



 

EPo Energy, LLC  19 
 
 

24989 105th Street 
Columbus Junction, Iowa 52738 
PH:  319-541-3709 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit 5 – Solar Edge(Optimizer) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

67



Power Optimizer 
For North America 
P860 / P960 / P1101 

25 
YEAR 

WARRANTY 

PV power optimization at the module-level 
The most cost-effective solution for commercial and large field installations 

Specifically designed to work with SolarEdge 
inverters 

Up to 25% more energy 

Superior efficiency (99.5%) 

Balance of System cost reduction; 50% less 
cables, fuses and combiner boxes, over 2x longer 
string lengths possible 

Fast installation with a single bolt 

Advanced maintenance with module-level 
monitoring 

Module-level voltage shutdown for installer 
and firefighter safety 

Meets NEC requirements for arc fault 
protection (AFCI) and Photovoltaic Rapid 
Shutdown System (PVRSS) 

solaredge.com 

PO
W

ER  O
PTIM

IZER
68



Power Optimizer For North America
P860 / P960 / P1101 

Power OptimizerModel 
(Typical Module Compatibility)

P860 
(for 2 x 72 cell modules) 

P960 
(for 2 x 72 cell modules) 

P1101 
(for up to 2 x high power or bi-

facial modules) 

(1) Rated power of the module at STC will not exceed the Power Optimizer “Rated Input DC Power”. Modules with up to +5% power tolerance are allowed 
(2) In the event of an odd number of PV modules in one string, installation of one P860 /P960 Power Optimizer connected to one PV module is allowed. When connecting a single module to the P860/

P960, seal the unused input connectors with the supplied pair of seals
(3) For other connector types please refer to: https://www.solaredge.com/sites/default/files/optimizer-input-connector-compatibility.pdf 
(4) For ambient temperature above +70˚C / +158˚F, power de-rating is applied. Refer to the Power Optimizers Temperature De-Rating Application Note for more details

PV System Design Using a 
SolarEdge Inverter(5)(6)

208V Grid 
SE14.4K* 

208V Grid 
SE17.3K* 

277/480V Grid 
SE20K, 30K 

277/480V Grid 
SE33.3K*, SE40K* 

Compatible Power Optimizers P860, P960, P1101 P860, P960, P1101 P860, P960, P1101 P860, P960, P1101 

Minimum String 
Length 

Power Optimizers 8 10 14 14 
PV Modules 15 19 27 27 

Maximum String 
Length 

Power Optimizers 30 30 30 30 
PV Modules 60 60 60 60 

Maximum Continuous Power per String 7200 8820 15300 15300 W 

Maximum Allowed Connected Power per String(7) 

(Permitted only when the difference in connected 
power between strings is up to 2,000W for the 
277/480V grid, or 1,000W for the 208V grid) 

1 string - 8400 1 string - 10020 1 string - 17550 2 strings or 
less - 17550 

W 2 strings or 
more - 9000 

2 strings or 
more - 10620 

2 strings or 
more - 20300 

3 strings or 
more - 20300 

Parallel Strings of Different Lengths or Orientations Yes 
* The same rules apply for Synergy units of equivalent power ratings, that are part of the modular Synergy Technology inverter 

(5) P860/P960 can be mixed in one string only with P860/P960 

INPUT 
Rated Input DC Power(1) 860 960 1100 W 
Connection Method Dual input for independently connected modules(2) Single input for series connected modules  
Absolute Maximum Input Voltage 
(Voc at lowest temperature) 60 125 Vdc 

MPPT Operating Range 12.5 - 60 12.5 - 105 Vdc 
Maximum Short Circuit Current (Isc) 22 23.2 Adc 
Maximum Short Circuit Current per Input (Isc) 11 11.6 

14.1 
Adc 

Maximum Efficiency 99.5 % 
Weighted Efficiency 98.6 % 
Overvoltage Category II 
OUTPUT DURING OPERATION (POWER OPTIMIZER CONNECTED TO OPERATING SOLAREDGE INVERTER)
Maximum Output Current 18 Adc 
Maximum Output Voltage 80 Vdc 
OUTPUT DURING STANDBY (POWER OPTIMIZER DISCONNECTED FROM SOLAREDGE INVERTER OR SOLAREDGE INVERTER OFF)
Safety Output Voltage per Power Optimizer 1 ± 0.1 Vdc 
STANDARD COMPLIANCE 
Photovoltaic Rapid Shutdown System Compliant with NEC 2014, 2017, 2020
EMC FCC Part 15 Class A, IEC61000-6-2, IEC61000-6-3 
Safety IEC62109-1 (class II safety), UL1741 
Material UL94 V-0, UV resistant 
RoHS Yes 
INSTALLATION SPECIFICATIONS 
Compatible SolarEdge Inverters Three phase inverters SE30K & larger 
Maximum Allowed System Voltage 1000 Vdc 
Dimensions (W x L x H) 129 x 169 x 59 / 5.1 x 6.65 x 2.32 129 x 162 x 59 / 5.1 x 6.4 x 2.32  mm / in 
Weight 1064 / 2.34 gr / lb 
Input Connector MC4(3) 

Input Wire Length Options Input #1 Input #2 Input #1 Input #2 - 

m / ft 

1 (-) 0.16 / 0.52,  
(+) 0.16 / 0.52 

(-) 0.16 / 0.52,  
(+) 0.16 / 0.52 

(-) 1.6 / 5.2, 
(+) 1.6 / 5.2 

(-) 1.6 / 5.2, 
(+) 1.6 / 5.2 1.6 / 5.2 2 (-) 1.6 / 5.2,  

(+) 0.16 / 0.52 
(-) 0.16 / 0.52,  
(+) 1.6 / 5.2 

3 (-) 1.6 / 5.2,  
(+) 1.6 / 5.2 

(-) 1.6 / 5.2,  
(+) 1.6 / 5.2 

Output Wire Type / Connector Double insulated; MC4 
Output Wire Length 2.3 / 7.5 2.3 / 7.5 2.4 / 7.8 m / ft 
Operating Temperature Range(4) -40 to +85 / -40 to +185 ˚C / ˚F 
Protection Rating IP68 / NEMA6P 
Relative Humidity 0 - 100 % 

© SolarEdge Technologies Ltd. All rights reserved. SOLAREDGE, the SolarEdge logo, OPTIMIZED BY SOLAREDGE are trademarks or registered trademarks of SolarEdge Technologies, Ltd. 
All other trademarks mentioned herein are trademarks of their respective owners. Date: 10/2021 DS-000013-4.3-NA. Subject to change without notice. 

-

IEC62109-1 (class II safety), UL1741, UL3741  

129 x 169 x 72 / 5.1 x 6.65 x 2.83 
1410 / 3.1 1340 / 2.95 

(6) P860/P960 design with three phase 208V inverters is limited. Use the SolarEdge Designer for verification 
(7) To connect more STC power per string, design your project using SolarEdge Designer

69



 

EPo Energy, LLC  20 
 
 

24989 105th Street 
Columbus Junction, Iowa 52738 
PH:  319-541-3709 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit 6 – IronRidge (Racking) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

70



Tech Brief

Strong, Light, and Ready for Anything
The IronRidge BX System is designed to meet the needs of 
commercial solar—navigating complex roof layouts, while also 
handling the most extreme environmental conditions. 

At the core of BX is the Chassis, a ballasted mount made of BASF 
Ultramid polyamides. They are exceptional for their high mechanical 
strength, rigidity and thermal stability (and are 100% recyclable).

Moreover, Ultramid polyamides afford good impact resistance even at 
low temperatures as well as UV protections for long life. Chassis come 
in 5° and 10° options and are backed by IronRidge’s 25-year warranty.

BX Chassis

Top & Bottom Clamp
The multi-directional grip on the 
module from above and below 
ensures a strong connection 
regardless of force direction. 

360° Reinforcement
A flange around the entire perimeter 
helps to reinforce and stiffen the 
Chassis in all directions—alongside 
wide bends to reduce point loading and 
braced corners to increase rigidity.

Roof-Friendly Design
Wide base spreads weight and 
reduces point pressure, while 
openings along the bottom and 
corners prevent pooling and reduce 
ballast weathering. 

71



 © 2019 IronRidge, Inc. All rights reserved. Visit www.ironridge.com or call 1-800-227-9523 for more information. Version 1.10

Tech Brief

Inter-Row Spacing & Edge Clearances

Flat Roof Attachment Anchors

BX Systems can be fully ballasted, fully 
anchored, or a hybrid optimized for the site. 

Combine BX with an IronRidge Flat Roof 
Attachment Kit to eliminate hundreds of 
pounds of required ballast weight and 
achieve configurations as light as 3 PSF.

The placement and fastening method can 
be optimized for existing roof structures, 
and pre-approved membranes are offered 
to maintain membrane roof warranties.

Testing & Certification

Design Assistant
Automated design software provides an accurate bill of materials, using a simple drag-and-draw interface to 
generate a complete system plan—also generate a ballast map showing the required ballast for each Chassis.

Permit Documentation
Design Assistant project reports are backed with a ASCE/PE stamp and Commercial Services are also 
available to assist with more complex projects. Visit our website or contact an IronRidge sales represenative.

UL 2703
Certification for the BX System conforms to the latest requirements and includes 1) Mechanical, 2) Bonding, 
and 3) Class A Fire Ratings (without wind deflectors). Ninety percent of solar modules are fully supported.

Anchor Uses
All IronRidge Kit & Strut

Eliminates 450 lbs. 
of Ballast Blocks

5° Chassis

10° Chassis

With 10-13” inter-row spacing, BX provides an 8-10% increase in power density compared with other ballasted 
systems—that’s a capacity increase of 20% in a typical 50kW system. The BX Chassis geometry also offers 
more than 5” of clearance in the 10-degree configuration and 8” in the 5-degree configuration, enabling the 
system to avoid drain domes, roof saddles, and conduit supports.

12”

12”
5”

8”

10”

13”

72



Tech Brief

Slip sheet requirements will vary based on the roofing 
material, manufacturer and project location. The 
specified dimensions below are for the actual interface 
between BX Chassis and the roof. 

Please consult the roofing manufacturer to determine 
if slip sheets are required, and if so, the appropriate 
dimensions, as slip sheets will need to be 
larger than the interface dimensions.   

BX Slip Sheet Guide

BX/ROOF INTERFACE

B

A

B

A17”

15”

800-227-9523
TECH SUPPORT

Slip sheet dimensions vary by 
roofing material manufacturer. 

73



 

EPo Energy, LLC  21 
 
 

24989 105th Street 
Columbus Junction, Iowa 52738 
PH:  319-541-3709 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit 7 – Diagram of Proposed System Layout 
 

 
 
 
 

74



75


	Board Memo - pgs 1-2
	Agenda - pgs 3-4
	Agenda Item 5: Minutes of October 2021 - pgs 5-7
	Agenda Item 9: October 2021 Monthly Expenditures - pgs 8-10
	Agenda Item 10: Articulated Dump Truck - pgs 11-38
	Agenda Item 11: Award Solar Panel Bid - pgs 39-75



